
PUBLIC NOTICE

AGENDA

LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL

August 3, 2021

CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS

217 SOUTH MAIN STREET 3RD FLOOR

LOCKHART, TEXAS

COUNCILMEMBER VIDEO AND AUDIO CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION

Pursuant to Section 551. 127 of the Texas Government Code, one or more members of the

Lockhart City Council may participate in a meeting remotely, following certain guidelines and
notice requirements. The member of the Council presiding over the meeting will be physically
present at the above public location. Video and audio conference equipment providing two-way
video/audio communication with each member participating remotely will be made available,
and each portion of the meeting held by video/audio conference that is required to be open to
the public can be heard by the public at the location specified.

CITIZEN AND COUNCILMEMBER VIDEO/AUDIO CONFERENCE PARTICIPATION

Join virtual meetings via Zoom.

Mayor will call upon each citizen registered to address the Council during the agenda item.
Council agenda packets can be reviewed at www.lockhart-

tx.orp/page/pov agendas minutes
Individuals may watch the Council meeting online at https://www.lockhart-

tx.orp/pape/pov meeting videos

PUBLIC COMMENT

Persons wishing to virtually "speak" during the public comment period of a public meeting must
submit their written comments to cconstancio(a-)lockhart- tx.org no later than 12 p. m. ( noon) on

the day of the meeting. Timely submitted comments will be read aloud by the Mayor during the
public comment portion of the meeting.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Persons wishing to participate in any public hearing item listed on the agenda may do so as
follows..

Send written comments which will be read aloud, or

Request a link to join the public hearing portion of the virtual meeting.
Written comments or requests to join a public hearing by virtual meeting must be sent to

cconstancio(a) Iockhart- tx. org no later than 12 p. m. ( noon) on the day of the hearing. Comments
shall have a time limit of three minutes each. Citizens who join the public hearing virtually will
be provided a link and call- in number to participate remotely.

Comments whether during public hearings or public comment periods, shall have a time limit of
three minutes each. Any threatening, defamatory or other similar comments are prohibited.

1 of 5

City Council- August 3, 2021
Pagel of 360









Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street, Lockhart, 
Texas, on the 30th day of July 2021 at 3:40 p.m.

5 of 5 
City Council - August 3, 2021 

Page 5 of 360 



City of Lockhart,  Texas

Council Agenda Item

Cover Sheet

COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2021

AGENDA ITEM CAPTION:  Presentation of Downtown Revitalization Project and discuss

Agreement with TRC Engineers, Inc. for engineering services of conceptual design alternatives
of the City of Lockhart Downtown Revitalization Project and authorize the City Manager to sign
the agreement.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT AND CONTACT:  Public Works - Sean Kelley, Steven Lewis

ACTION REQUESTED:  Award of Contract

BACKGROUND/ SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  On April 13, 2021 City Council directed the City
Engineer to prepare a proposal for the Downtown Revitalization Project that would include

public meetings, coordination with other governing entities, conceptual design alternatives for
the nine block area of downtown, preliminary traffic route evaluation, cultural services,
preliminary landscape designs and probable cost for the project. The Downtown Revitalization
Project and design alternatives shall keep within the theme of the Sustainable Places Project
document adopted and approved by City Council in 2013.

PROJECT SCHEDULE ( if applicable):

AMOUNT & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Funds Required: $88, 600. 00

Account Number: 416- 5633- 903

Funds Available:

Account Name: 2015 CO

FISCAL NOTE ( if applicable):

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  City Council Adopted Sustainable Places Project-2013.
City Council Directed City Engineer to prepare a proposal for conceptual designs and probable
cost- April 13, 2021 .

COMMITTEE/ BOARD/COMMISSION ACTION:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ REQUESTED MOTION:  Staff recommends approval of

Agreement as presented by TRC Engineers.

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  Agreement with TRC - Lockhart Downtown Project-

Concept Design.

Page 6 of 360



City of Lockhart,  Texas

Council Agenda Item

Cover Sheet

Page 7 of 360



Tri
505 East Huntland Drive 51 8716

SuiteSuite 250 TRCcompcompanies. com

f Austin, Texas 78752 T.B. P. E. # F- 8632

July 28, 2021

Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
308 W. San Antonio Street

Lockhart, Texas 78644

RE:    City of Lockhart Downtown Revitalization Project
Engineering Services Proposal — Conceptual Design Alternatives

Dear Mr. Lewis:

TRC Engineers, Inc. (TRC) has prepared this Engineering Services Proposal for
professional engineering and landscape architecture services for the conceptual level

design of the proposed Downtown Revitalization Project which includes utility, drainage,
street, hardscape, pedestrian access, landscaping, and other various improvements as
defined in the Scope of Work below.

The project consists of improvements within the nine- block area centered around the

Lockhart Courthouse.  The work will consist of three concept- level design alternatives

for review by City Staff and the public at large.  At the request of the City, TRC will
provide a presentation to City Staff and City Council as well as hold interactive
workshops with the public.

TRC will perform the following Scope of Work:

SCOPE OF WORK

A.  Coordination Meetings

1 .  Attend one ( 1) initial site visit and one ( 1) kickoff meeting with City staff.  The

purpose of the meeting and site visit will be to seek input from City staff on
desired improvements for incorporation into the design alternatives.

2.  Attend one ( 1) coordination meeting with representatives from TxDOT for project
notification and gather input on potential improvements

3.  Attend one ( 1) coordination meeting with representatives from Caldwell County
for project notification and to gather input on potential improvements.

Page 8 of 360



Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
July 28, 2021
Page 2 of 6

B.  Conceptual Design Alternative Development

1.  The design team will prepare three (3) concept- level design alternatives for

enhancing the hardscape, landscape, pedestrian mobility, roads and utilities
within the nine- block area.

2.  The nine- block area is defined by Walnut Street on the north, Colorado Street
US 183) on the east; Prairie Lea Street on the south, and Church Street on the

west.

3.  Each alternative layout will include the following improvements:

a.  Hardscape pavement (sidewalk) enhancements

b.  Revised parking configurations along North Main Street and around the
Caldwell County Courthouse.

c.   Planting plan identifying landscaped areas with suggested plants.

d.  Accessibility / pedestrian access to include identification of curb ramp
locations, curb bulbouts, and pedestrian refuge islands.

e.  Suggested pedestrian scale lighting fixtures

f.   Utility (water, sewer, drainage) and street improvements.

4.  Each alternative will be designed to meet the following criteria:

a.  Provide a pedestrian friendly space.

b.  Provide a sense of place and enhance the overall aesthetic for the downtown

area.

c.   Preserve as much of the existing parking as possible.

d.  Minimize the overall project cost.

e.  Keep within the theme of the Sustainable Place Project document adopted
and approved by the City in 2013 and TRC' s presentation to City Council on
April 13, 2021.

5.  At least one alternative will include the addition of a public plaza north of the

courthouse on San Antonio Street.

6.  Each alternative will consist of concept- level drawings including scaled plans,

necessary elevations, sections, details, and/ or reference images to illustrate and
support the design concept.

i TRC
Page 9 of 360



Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
July 28, 2021
Page 3 of 6

7.  Concept level engineer's opinion of probable costs ( EOPC) will be prepared for

each alternative.

C.  Preliminary Traffic Route Evaluation

1.  Evaluate up to three ( 3) traffic route alternatives for the section of North Main
Street between San Antonio Street (SH 142) and Walnut Street.  The three

alternatives shall be:

a.  Closing North Main Street to vehicular traffic completely.

b.  Revise N Main St to one-way northbound and Commerce St to one way
southbound.

c.   Revise N Main St to one-way southbound and Commerce St to one-way
northbound.

2.  Each alternative will be evaluated for the following:

a.  Feasibility of making the change

b.  The effects on traffic to the surrounding streets

c.  The impact to pedestrians

d.  Determining what improvements would likely be necessary.

D.  Presentations

1 .  Attend two (2) Public forums to present each design alternative.

a.  The first public forum will be to present the three initial design concept

alternatives and receive comments from the public.

b.  The design alternative( s) will then be updated to incorporate public

comments.  The second forum will be to present the updated concepts.

2.  Attend one ( 1) City Council meeting to present the final design concept.

3.  The design team shall be available to answer questions at each meeting.

E.  Cultural Services

1 .  TRC will perform a cultural resources desktop study and a project consultation
with the THC. An archeological file search and review of sources will be

I&     TRC
Page 10 of 360



Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
July 28, 2021
Page 4 of 6

performed using the THC Historic and Archeological Sites Atlas ( THC Atlas) and
other sources to ensure compliance under the Antiquities Code of Texas within

the Area of Potential Effects (APE) and within a 1 - kilometer radius of the APE.

The THC will review the letter of consultation and provide a response within 30

days of submission.

2.  If after consultation, THC determines that an archeological survey of the Project
Area is required, then TRC will prepare a separate SOW and cost estimate for

this service and submit to the City for approval.

F.  Deliverables

1 .  One ( 1) electronic (PDF) and up to ten ( 10) 11" x 17" hard copies of each design
alternative and EOPC will be submitted to the City.

2.  Larger exhibits may be used for the public forums and council meeting.

3.  A final conceptual design report shall be submitted to include:

a.  Summary of the initial three ( 3) conceptual design alternatives,

b.  Findings from the public meetings,

c.   Final design concept based on input received from the public to be used as

the basis of design for final engineering design and construction documents.

ASSUMPTIONS:

As a basis for the preparation of this proposal and the associated cost of services, the

following assumptions were made, which if found to be incorrect, may result in
additional compensation to TRC:

1 .  The scope of services is limited to the tasks mentioned above and additional

services such as detailed construction documents and construction support will

be generated in a separate proposal pending the selection of a preferred
alternative by the City and the public at large.

2.  Coordination meetings shall be held in Lockhart, TX or over video conferencing.
3.  Rialto Studio, Inc. will be used as TRC' s subconsultant for professional

landscape architecture services.

4.  The alternative route evaluations will be based on traffic counts collected within

the past year. Traffic counts will be collected by the City during the school year.

I&     TRC
Page 11 of 360



Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
July 28, 2021
Page 5 of 6

EXCLUSIONS:

The following items are specifically excluded from the scope of work but may be added
if requested by the City:

Additional presentations or follow up meetings with City Council.

Additional layouts or revisions to the initial three alternative design concepts

developed.

Photorealistic three-dimensional images or artistic style renderings.

Detailed design of drawings or specification development.

Preparation of permit applications or payment of permit fees.

Detailed title search or title policy.

Plat documents, easement or ROW acquisition or negotiations.

Design of improvements or relocations for electrical lines, gas lines, telephone lines

or other franchise utilities.

Design of stormwater detention of any developed or undeveloped properties unless

specifically stated otherwise

Traffic signal design.

COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES:

TRC will provide the professional engineering services as outlined herein and within the

Master Services Agreement executed between the City and TRC, for a total fee as
follows:

Coordination Meetings 5, 900. 00

Conceptual Design Alternative Development 53, 550. 00

Preliminary Traffic Route Evaluation 4, 950. 00

Presentations 15, 600. 00

Cultural Services 2, 100. 00

Final Design Report 6, 500. 00

Total ( lump sum):       88, 600. 00

I&     TRC
Page 12 of 360



Mr. Steve Lewis, City Manager
City of Lockhart
July 28, 2021
Page 6 of 6

This fee includes labor and material costs associated with the Scope of Work identified

above.

TRC' s lump sum fee above is based on a continuous flow of work.  Any delays or
restrictions, caused by customer or customer's sub consultants, which result in idle- time
or inefficiencies, could be cause for additional compensation.  The payment schedule will

be via monthly progress billing.

Changes in scope,  including additional scenarios or modification to the scenarios
identified above will be evaluated for additional services and/ or materials cost through a

formal change order process, which results in approval of the additional cost prior to

executing the additional work.

This proposal accounts for the currently known effects of the COVID- 19 pandemic, but
TRC cannot predict any different effects or requirements, such as impacts due to future
governmental orders, CDC guidelines, or extended duration of the COVID- 19 pandemic.

Fees for services quoted in this Letter of Agreement are valid for a period of time not to

exceed 60 days from the date of this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to assist with this project and are available to proceed
immediately with your written approval and payment of the retainer.  Please review this

Letter of Agreement and, upon acceptance, sign in the space provided below, returning

a copy for our files.

Sincerely,

r/  22

Jeff Dahm, PE Mr. Steve Lewis

Austin CES Practice Leader.  City Manager

July 28, 2021
Date:  Date

i TRC
Page 13 of 360



City of Lockhart,  Texas

Council Agenda Item

Cover Sheet

COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  August 3, 2021

AGENDA ITEM CAPTION:  Presentation and discussion of Raftelis Water and Wastewater

Rate Study.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT AND CONTACT:  Finance - Pam Larison

ACTION REQUESTED:  Direction

BACKGROUND/ SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  On February 2, 2021, the City Council awarded a
contract to Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. to perform a water and wastewater rate study.

The purpose of the study is to determine the total cost of providing water and wastewater
services, equitably distribute costs to customers, and design rates to safeguard the financial
integrity of the city utility systems.

Besides monitoring the City's current capital needs and increasing demand against its current
supply, other factors determine if rates are meeting the needs of the systems, maintaining
current infrastructure, and meeting debt obligations. This presentation will help the City
develop a multi- year financial plan that is achievable to meet debt payments for all Water and
Wastewater obligations including the Carrizo Groundwater Project while allowing the City to be
prepared for any future capital improvement projects.

PROJECT SCHEDULE ( if applicable):  N/ A

AMOUNT & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Funds Required:

Account Number:

Funds Available:

Account Name:

FISCAL NOTE ( if applicable):

PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION:  N/ A

COMMITTEE/ BOARD/ COMMISSION ACTION:  N/ A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/ REQUESTED MOTION:  To receive direction from

Council concerning water and wastewater rates for Fiscal Year 2021- 2022; direction to staff to
prepare city code amendments.

Page 14 of 360



City of Lockhart,  Texas

Council Agenda Item

Cover Sheet

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  City of Lockhart Water and Wastewater Rate Study
Presentation, City of Lockhart Water and Wastewater Rate Study Report

Page 15 of 360



L

J

W

H

o LL

N

M

Q fY



OMM
wO

NO6d

N

rowN      
N N
d d

0     o      =
a m      _

O      >+     EL co

LL

r N M

N



OMM
wO
W

NO6
4--

0O O

cn fA 5

U O
N •   fA   

O Q- 12!       _ CY) N U
I  _  cn           N •    p

d N O L J

Mimi O
0)

2DO Oco
C)   CUN  

C       = -      O p U

V

M



OMM
wO
O

NO6d

G1 c

C cn N
o

coco
ca • 

Tt

O
x

F

c c
o o    .U co

p= U)

LU U)   Q cn a co

U)N —L •-
o a 3:

Q C\

VN
Q- N

E
L N U

Q     •_
O  >  C a E N
G1 L-

C

M a          

o U L CU
L   }

co

cuc
V L  =       N co

N L    aEcu
G CL X o acu
LLOLu T- 00- o

V D
MA

w

0E  
4-

0
O

X
0 LU
ca
V t! 1 a Q o  c

cu

p c ocooa? 0
LL C7 0)

a



Z
W W

Z W
W 

W

N

C9 W

LODOC

In

04

LO

J
D
Z
a

N

J V
a

z d
a a

a H

z

o

L

Q  OUm



OMM
wO

N

NO6d

C
W

W E
l.L

cr
W

O U

N N

NC
cn cna)     CU N

4- 0

NCo
U N

C:    
N

T

aj   >'
E C:    

C

O N

70 Q
ON

Co O 4-

N• aO

mCL

NN Coc

N 4- 0

O
C

O

a)  .0N C N
4- 0

C T

N
0

O c

c

O

U 4

V 026 0'
L Q   (D L    _

6 Q

u)    c Q   •E L
L C:    N

N     >   cam
4- 0

J)

a a)



OMM
wO

NN

NO6d

CDNO
1 LL

Mimi
0

N

CN

N p 6
O

1 f N U

f Q Q
LLf O O

1 1

1 3)

1
N

le N
1

c 3)

1 N

1 LL of

U W
1 0

I

1 LO

1
O

O

Q

06  }

V o  <    o
0

N I 3

N

N N

LL

UC

N7CN
N

of

O N
64 6%

LL

N

LL

N

O
Z

I-



OMM
wO

MN

NO6d

00

N

yr

L

N X
M W

LL  >I
co

0

O
U

N
co

r
co

co
m

E
v  

O o .mN
U-

V
cn

M

O N Q
M

LU
L}L

n

co

0

1

NN
MO
00 N
N

LL

00



m O m 00 LD N 00 N m M N
O

O 00 m ri Ln to to Ln    00 m 00 ri O M
00 rrQ1 N e- 1 m 00 N M W 00 I, Ln     .

lD 00 Ln r-I N to m N N N IZF n Lo
O

00 O N p 00

M
N 00 0 00 cn V

0)     00 00 lD ri N Cn N

t ri Ln LA ri r-I LA c•j
L6

V).    V}    V} In V/-      V}    iA In in VI.     
d

o to O Ln O to cn Ln m O I,       m ri N cn
ri 00 0)     00 N Ln Ln O 00       ' t ri M I,

lfl Ln Ln O N M rl Ql n lcl       Dl ri Oct rI
Ln 00 Ln d' O W Nto Ln

m n NLn n N r n N N N r 00 T
c- i Cl) c- i     : T to M O N M to I-     to 00

Tr Ln Lfl ri c4 Lfl Iti r-I

V}    VT V} i/1 iA VT i? L!       V}    i/F i?

O M - ii ' t
r- i Ln

M 00
rl Ln       - I N M cn Dl

t0
M 00

tp Ln O Ln Ol I: Vt M 00 m ` c rl

Lr) lzT 01 N N N 00 0l N m lD n 00 I,
I" to m tD O t to ri N Ln N N N
O ID r-     ' t N 01 O N M N rl "" N n
I:T     t Lr M r-I N Lf1       - ZF     - t N

V}    V4 V} in in V}    i? iR V}    i/)• V1

O Ln ON I,     O r
D n4

m o M m I- ri Ln Lo

tp T C rr^     Ol N Ln n ri a
z Lri N M to

M LD O N to 00 N to mr" 000 kn Ln r-I O Lo Ln N N lD v Ln to
C mm      00 Ln of m M 00 n n Ln

m Ize v rn r4 f       -t v ri

V}    V} A4 i/f.      V}    Vf i/4 V}    V1- i/?

Ln rn r, 
Lo

00 n m o M a)     Ln O
Ol lD tD

Lr

L       

tN
00 o co

G O

NLn
mLr00 N Lnm - t lfl 00 Ln Lf1 O

Lr,    en

Lyj

I m ri 00 ( n N O N ri d' M co
00 ri O C O r-I 01 ri O rl 00 N O

m ItT N to Ln r I lb Z d N

V}    ij'-    V). i/1•       iA V)-    i? {/i'       V}    i/t• V1

IZT
R

O

ONN

O/  61

u c  
La

m

w y m CO
1a+

N C a+  C 01 U C C

v v m
01

a LL LL
E

CAv     (       a) M
5

Ol
y C

OJ O
a.+

3 0

cc c c0 a- =    w 0)
Q v a)   I

o
v a LL v Q Q.

Ln v a a  >       : r a)     u  > O Om

O
7 G d

d c is a s
a v >  o is c c

Q Lo

W w Q H z o 0) 
0

U a ~  o c 3 W m
0:     F-    LL m N

F-

0O
N

U

O c O
O N LP N

O
N E CL6

a N a) N O tl) O

o !-

3 O O N

i+ C ji O I 3 M a)     O

7i
y N o C LON r

d r U O ( n O
N ON N

O N C    > Oo C M QG1
I

2 (
DE

CDry
CL

pD_ C .
O m

0 U) O Q L6 d N U

V



OMM
wO

LON

NO6d

W

a)   W
E
CL

cr
1

6-- i
A

cn

O pL

U 0

U

U

O C:

N

aj   >'
C:

U N O Q

c U 0)  4-
N        U U-    L O
3U   'C N

CL

O o m N(    a
O

1)  
O

N  .v N O C K

T N N
C:   O

N E
U a)    

O co   ( D

U)    C Q   .E L
Co a

70 a)     a)    a cocomma

1 U
Uco

c C: 2
a a)

0



OMM
wO

MN

NO60_

3C
co

O N
1

N

1
LL

O
Q

1 0

1
I

LO

1

3

1

i      1
O

w

1 rLL N

W

1 I
1 0

1 r
Q

vNON
1 LL

U

1

1
s

0

1
NN

1
QO
a`

M   {N
f

ON   }

LL   
U

V
s

1

U
N

INO04}
LL   

0

I
In O In O In O In O In O

S
SUOIllIw



OMM
wO

N

NO6d

N

LO N
NLOa

N

M N yN
6

LL c

I
NQX

y W

R T

W
p m

O

U

Zcu
cu

Q m

J E
Q o E

N

y     

N
CN

W LL

V z N

3

L

UCNQXW
T

Cl)

04
m

O
0

N

I
N

LL

NN
N

N

LL

N



o tD 00 O O c- I c- I N N O N N
O

O tD m lD Ln ri       ^       d•     00 LM m 0 LM W M
t0  r-I 00 O C1 LD O 1 M 0

I m n r4'

Oil rl

W    
lMD M n -10 czOl

Ln r-ICOOl0 ri o0 N rLOM r-I M LM Ct N
N ci M en M ryj N N ri N

a30_

o Ln 00 M O M n 00 - 1 O N      ' t t0 O w
O tD M O Ln Ln n l0 00 LM N t0 N m m

tD oc00 lD a W M N N N  t w N

O Ln O lC n L.       r-r-i     .-- I
frn r-i LLnn 4.

00r0
N       ' t r-I LM

Ln 00 M   - 4 Ln O N - A M M O    r^-I N
N M M M tY1 N N ri

L?

o ri N M O M M T 01 M lD r,  M LM
O tD lzt O Ln LM 00 00 n ri N tD l0 ri

O O 0q, 01 Ci lD - 4 ri      t ri N  *

00 l0 M N 00 O r-  00 n Ln Ol l0 ri
n 00 to tD N N k O I      00  ' t M

Ln O   - 1 N N - 1 M N O O r-I

N M LYj N tf N N .--I

t/}     L}   t/} t/?       i/?      to in -LR iA

o O Ln l0 O l0 Ln N M 1* m r-I
O N M Ln Ln O N O l0 10 M tD M N N

00 00 l0 00 LM n 00 O 00 lD Ln Z   .- i

t0 00 M N M r-C4 nI 01 UD l0 O Ln 00 IN
lzzr M I-   r-I M 00       .- I ri N c- I N O O

N N N N ryj N N r-j

0 0) M N O N N Ol O 01 tD           r-I lD
O O Ln t0 Ln r-I LM O C'1 LM O l0 N

00 01 M N 00 ri              LI-   n r-fl LI O Ln O17l Ln 00

tD 01
lLn
0 mO

Ln M t0 O 10 O D7 Ln  O
M - 4 Ln   - 1 n a       - I ri N N LD N ri

N N N N M N N r-I

i/     in•   t/} 14 i/?      i/}     in AI to An in

7
1 

N

1N
u C  
r R MR

v)au
a O/      to L6

m
a)  Dwa a)      a p
al C

i a1 U      >_
3 N u

C

Ql v N Z)    al 0-  M

V) wf0 VLL

E
E a mE oA OD

O
v CU CU

c U

C
o CD    >  

cu 3 ca a     m a o a  *'

Q     ° a o m Q a s Q v
fir

0

v oc

0

to a p Q.

QJ na     v a)  m   —  a) O U a
m

e
O

c  =  is =  Z ' E v)  C N
N X o O C    > 0 n3 p a O C b0

C m
w w Q -   z U

LL m Ln W H

0Ul U
U

O

a)     C N M
LO

3
a3 C N N C

a) > wa) O
o ON a3

7 a3 N >    N o 0 C
00N . 0 0      ' 0 a3 0 0

Y
0 i N C y N r- O N 10) t

I
i+ C

0

N N I C ON O 0
CL

N C
N

uld U a)    NO ` N N C
CLa3

N 0) a) N 0 \    N    <

O
Il

N     E Q 00 0_ a5 CD

I.L I. L Y
M



of

N

D

c



OMM
wO

OM

NO6d

L

0

72

0

U

o

cn

Q
E

cn 0

0) cn

U

O L

4- 0 0
0

L'    a)  m
Qcn

cn

V
VL    

i U U

U
N

0 U_
N Q 

0Q Q 0 T
L)

U Q E Q w ch

N



OMM
wO

M

NO6d

0
rî M  Lr) lm0 l.0 r, r" rN 000 ONO c

l0 Ln Cj) Ln 00 O m m r, O N m  t Ln
ri N I:T to n n 00 00 Cl) Ol Ol Ql 0) 

A

4- 0

O

01 n r, Ln r1 00 r\ Ln r\ r\ m n O E
Ln Ln l0 l0 n N rl Ln r CO CO Ln N OOl ` N ll00 00 Ol N lD rl 00 N ri

L
Ln I\ N Ol Ol : iIll g O Ln m m to

00 N  l0 00 m O r- I r-I 1-- iN N Q C6
1-11-1r1 r1 r1 N N N N NCN

L

O L

F-
0- O L

N
ri m ri to v ri rn m rn
lD M I     00 Ol Lf1 00 N lD O Lfl

0
00 l0 00 O N Lr1 00 tD 00 f tT lfl m   _O

O' n L6 00' r- rq : ze N' 00 ryi,
rl t 1. 0 m r1 M m 110 n 00 00

mcn
L i11

J r-I ri ri ri ri ri ri ri VJ

r0

f6

0 n00 l0 00 O O1 00 l0 O N m 01 N
O l.0 Ln l0 l0 O n N Ln r` m O l0
ci Ln N 00 l0 ri Ili lfl Il Iii NI' D

Ln

N
M  ^ 

c- I N
N m m Tt 1 L

0

O
W rl l0 l0 00 LI1 00 n 00 00 O N N W

lD rl M l0 - f O m N O t Zt m m
CP M

r-I 0N

ri N N N m 00 Ol ri It

cr rr'f N n n cv1 m Lfl   ' O r\ I' D  t
ri N N N N ri ri ri ri

VJ

L

L

ri W WN N Ol ri lN N0     
b

ri QO CD 00 ri

r,      ocoo
Ln ri ri ri N ori

r1   to l0 r\'     m r,     mrn o Ln m
QM Tt lD r\ to Lfl m Nrl rl 11

co

ri N m  : t Ln l0 r. 00 rn o ri N m 7
ri ri ri ri

O

O
U

O cn

cn 0
0



OMM
wO

NM

NO6
CC

d

alb
i

i

i
9G

i
6

06

V8

TS

8t

5t

69

99

9

09

L5 
ao

vg

T5 0
u

at

sv
i

Ztr
0

6£

9£

0£
i

LZ

VZ

iZ

81

5i

Zi

9

a       ° r       m 0

SUN# a luaAad

r



OMM
wO

MM

NO6d

O

l`     W_

W_     

TS

w XX

V

W cu

V N N

CO u

N N a
bA L

cu

a)    U

o a a)
A c      LLUE U

4- 0 a)   a) a)   
a)

m x  x
a)

CCS CO LL LL

r N
C

M
C:

OO N O N

W

m m M 4-5
a cn r cQ



OMM
wO

VM

NO6d

V

I-  m Ol l0 N O I-  N
Ol N lzT N m T  N 0)

i gyri Ln k Ln t.6 1 6

V
ry

0 0 0 0 0 00000

0
V
4

N l0 00
0

O+   
N l0    

O O
6 00 O N 9. 0 c- I N

N O rl N m9 r N O rl N mlzt
L L L L L 0 L L L L L

V

m



OMM
0O

LO

l0 LPI Ln I-  Ol l0
M

N 9- 0 rl  -:Zf r  r

O l0 lD l0 I       
0_

O Ol Or)  N LP)

C1 N LPI l0 l0 I
N I:zj-

IP}   tJ? tP1-

I-    OLn 00  - 1 O

I--:    O Ll' j LPj 1. 6 I
N

t/ I-   t/)- t/}

00 N N Lin 00 fo

LI1 OO LPI Ll')  Lli l0
N M

O Cr)  N  ': t N

Lll L1')  l0
N M

0 00 00 O OM O

M 1:4-      t LPI LPI l0
N M

OO O O O
O O O O O
O O O O O

c-I c-I c-I c-I c-I

U - U tf)- t/')- -L

t%       r t
co

4-'

C O

72 IL

CA

N

OCOC Z

L-

m m

V U
C
O

i i       .L i          -  
N l0 00    

O

aJ N O N       • i  +  O N I' D 00

V4
s

4a

Q L L L L

N



OMM
wO

MM
D lzzr m lzzr m m Ln M  . o r-
r-4  (- D N O 00 M m l0 n Ln Lr)

o Lri ri r- i cri  6 Lri  , o r\  oo ur rl

m       - 1 N
Lo Lr)

V)-    V)-       4V)-

rw
m m 1- 0 m DO m Ln K 3-  r-  KZT m

1-   M N N M

m N LO N l0 r- Lf)  lD r  o0 Lr)

I Ln M 00 M l0

C)  
C)  r-    N

wx
CclD N Lnn 3  _4 00 O O r-    O

r o6 r-  61  -;  CO Cl'  lD r--  r%-    Ln
N lD M r-1  - 4 m

i N CD

N

J
w)

I to v)-       V)-

m m lzt m ltzt

o0 r       1-  M N LQ r-   CD M

L Ln  - zt m n m n Ln lD r
1 N l0 N O m KZZI-

A' c I N m lD

M r-  M  - 1 Ol Lf) N O r-  N r-
ZI:  O r I 17  M l.0 M Izi:  N 0l

i N Ln lD O Ln L-0 t0
1     A'      N l0 N Ol

re)  

r 1

r.   W
r-I r-I M lD

V0 0 0 0 0 0 00 N lD 00 N
lD l0 l0 tD l0 CD r-I N O lD M

M M M M M M Ln CD l0    
N N N N N N

V
1) O O O O O o

A'      O O O O O O

V/      O O O O O O

z0 0 0 0 0

0bnN A

O
t 0

Q

G
41 o

i
r0 N r0

6 OrO
i  +-'  O N l     -I N

Ln

C

W       QJ cc

V o

i=
L\       z

N



OMM
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 Ol r-I O r-
l0 0 O 00 O O l0 1. 0 r-I m l0 m
m Ol 00 00 It O rl 0)  c1 N l0
N Lr)  r-i 00 Ln Ol r i r-I

r1 r i m Ln o_

if)-  4j)-       V)-

CD 0 0 0 0 0 l0 mTZI-  0 I"
ID O O 00 O O O 00 N m N

m 0)  00 00 4 T O n 00 O r-i C0
N Ln r-i 00 Ln 0)  ri r-I

rH rH m Ln

0 0 0 0 0 0 mTZT 00 m
l0 O O 00 O O N 1-  O Ol r-

m 0)  00 00  - i O 1. 0 I,  Ol m Ln

N Ln r-I 00 Ln 0)
r-I r-i m Ln

0 0 0 0 0 0 lzzr O 01 ri N
1-0 O O W O O 1-  W 00 I-     N

M Ol 00 00 lzzr O Ln l0 I-  00 Ln
N Ln r-I 00 Ln 01

r-i  .- i m Ln

0 0 0 0 0 0 00 Ln O,  m m
I I-o O O 00 O O 1 0 00 r-  -: I-     r-

1 1 rfi of 00 00 lzzr o i Lri t. o ri     -zi
N Ln r-I 00

ry)  

Ol
1re-I m Ln

0 0 0 0 0 0 00 N l0 00 m
l0 l0 l0 l0 1-0 l0 1 N O l0 I-

0 m m m m m m Ln l0 l0

Wo
N N N N N N

il}  ih V}

GJ O O O O O O
O O O O O O

IL
O O O O O O

G O O O O O O

06 4-f)-

00

M
4

O bn

to

M

U4-

O O O     _0

V N

O N l0 N N

ED O ri N m

00 r-I
cn 4J N N 4J N O

Ln r-i r1 N m V cy-,  ~  ~  ~  ~  ~     z
N
N



OMM
wO

WM

NO6d
00 r1 lD m M

111 Lfl Ln

I
I

t/)- t/)-    V)- V)-    V)- V)-

Q0 Ol Ol r1 L! 1 r1

O
r-  Dl lD 00 00 M

O N N al N r-I M
111 I:t Ln

r-  00 00 lD 111 rl

Ql N lD N 00 M
4-1

Q0 Q0 C- 4
Ql l0 N

O     
M O

lD N N Ln rn

T/ 1
I1

oo o m
I-  r1 rl v N O

41h t! h

00 00 00

qur h t/}-

e- i m
u

N m
u

M m
u

M

ate-+     
f0

ate--+     
fa

ate--+   
4J

r-   c aJ r-   C 4J r-   c QJ

r/ 1 GJ O GJ O a1 O

M
N



OMM
wO

OM

NO6d

Ql M m O l0 N
N l0 rl I     00 Ol

O rn 00 Ln o0
Ln O 00 r-I
N M

l0 l0 N 01 N

O M N N l0 l0
T rl Ol N
N m m

4-0- 4-0-    V)- V)-    V)- V)-

O 00
N

Ol lO lz:

V I-  N O O O Ln
N rl I-  N l0 rl
N m M

0)  N N l-     O m
rl rl M I     M Ln

19t r. i Ci Oi Lri
rl rl rl l rl

4j)- 4j)-    V)- V)-    in in

Co m Ln o
o m0o Ln m

N 1, D Ol O Ln
O N CO m m
N M rl M rl

Vm m M

O
N N N

A ,     Ln Ln Ln

W Ql rn rn
rl rl rl

O M

e- i m N N m N rn DO a)

O_      

aa ,     

O O c
i

Mte-+   
fC

ate-+   
C

te-+   4J

QJ r 4J 4J

r O N O d1 O

CV V) o V) o in o

N



Ot9M
wO

OV

NO6d

lD lD lD I' D lD lD 00 W m 00 m m c- I

m m m m m m O O O O O O lD

N N N N N N N N N N N N

U  in

N N N N N N c- I c- I r1 r1 rl r1 00
Ln Ln Ln Ln Ln Ln m In m m m m rl

0 0 0 0 0 0 m m m Ln Ln Ln Lo
N N N N N N N N N N N N

V?      t4 th

00 00 00 00 00 00 Ln In Ln Ln Ln Ln I

li r1 r1 r1 rl l0 lfl LO to LD to n

O1 O1 D1 01 Q1 O1 m m m m m m Ln

ci rl - 1 IH r1 - 1 N N N N N N

N N N N N N r1 rl rl r1 r1 rlO

01 O1 () l D1 O1 01 r1 r1 rl rl -! - i lt

r- I1 n  -  IN N N Ln

rn
1

r, 
rl

rn r\ N N N
N N N N N N

Ln N Ln n Ln Ln lD LD lD LD l0 O
1l n n Ln n n lD l0 lD

LD
l0 LD O

lD lD l0 LD 110 l0 O O O O O O Ln

rl r1 - 1 r1 r1 r1 N N N N N N

ci r1 ci

LrI
LQIn N Ln n L! 1 L11 rl c- I c- I rl rl rl l0

Ln Ln 111 Ln Ln m Dl Dl Ol m m m

t

O
O O

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

t4 tr,

a

z 2

v

ob w

u v 0 z
u u

o2S
u u

i i
G) 47

O N
N N H v O c1
OJ

LL 00     ,- I 00

Ln rl - 1 N m Ln - i c- 1 N m U     ~ ~

N
N



OMM
wO

V

NO6d

C)  r-

00 rti

V m Q0
N Ol

N

th th

00 I-
N I,-

r,4

W

r--i00
Lr)  Lr)

Ol N
M

l0 N
M

I

rl

o

m
u

4- 1
a

0

o

GO

N



OMM
wO

NV

NO6d

C)  00
rl 00

N M
rl rl

N

w

00N
00 r--1
rl

rl M
N M

M rl

OA

00

o

4    ° o

M

y 0

L

N

r
N



OMM
wO

MV

NO6d

O
Nco

L

C N OV    
t01

O O N
AwAll     (

D O O

W m N N w
O

CO

M

P40

LO N Q C r M N.
2 0 07 C C C t4

1 0•  

cc R N N N J

N N N

cc cc cc cc

L L L J
Y Y Y

O O O
J J J

OO
N



OMM
wO

VV

NO6d

O

O

M
L

LO
00 c    ~

co 3

o
CO    ~

M N
LI!

m LO    N r

It I N c
O co    '

0 M M M
Efl 69 6

r

N

40)-

4.5 N CE LO M N r      +,      C.

v            R

c m a a a U

cc

m

L L L J
Y Y Y

O     
J J J

N

N



O
V

c

c

O

O  

O

U         



CITY OF

Lockhart

Water and Wastewater Rate Study

Draft Report / July 2021

RAFTELIS

Page 46 of 360



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS ......................................................................... 2

LISTOF FIGURES................................................................................................ 3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................ 1

StudyProcess.............................................................................................................................1

Costof Service Analysis............................................................................................................1

RateDesign.................................................................................................................................2

WATER FINANCIAL PLAN.................................................................... 2

FINANCIAL PLANNING METHODOLOGY .......................................................... 2

FORECAST OF REVENUE AT EXISTING RATES .............................................. 3

FORECAST OF EXPENSES ................................................................................ 3

OperatingExpenses...................................................................................................................3

CapitalExpenses........................................................................................................................4

CapitalFinancing........................................................................................................................5

CASH FLOW FORECAST.................................................................................... 5

WASTEWATER FINANCIAL PLAN....................................................... 6

FORECAST OF EXPENSES ................................................................................ 7

OperatingExpenses...................................................................................................................7

CapitalExpenses........................................................................................................................7

CapitalFinancing........................................................................................................................8

CASH FLOW FORECAST.................................................................................... 8

RATES AND CUSTOMER IMPACTS .................................................... 9

FixedCharges.............................................................................................................................9

VolumeCharges .......................................................................................................................10

PROPOSED WATER RATES............................................................................. 11

WASTEWATER RATES ..................................................................................... 13

COMBINED BILL COMPARISONS .................................................................... 13

RESULTS ............................................................................................. 15

CITY OF LOCKHART WATER AND WASTEWATER RATE STUDY

Page 47 of 360



List of Figures

Figure 1: Water Revenue at Existing Rates..................................................................................................... 3

Figure 2: Forecast of Water O& M..................................................................................................................... 4

Figure 3: Water Capital Improvement Program ..............................................................................................5

Figure 4: Water Capital Financing Plan ........................................................................................................... 5

Figure 5: Water Cash Flow Forecast................................................................................................................6

Figure 6: Wastewater Revenue at Existing Rates........................................................................................... 7

Figure 7: Forecast of Wastewater O& M Expenses.........................................................................................7

Figure 8: Wastewater Capital Improvement Program....................................................................................8

Figure 9: Wastewater Capital Financing Plan................................................................................................. 8

Figure 10 : Wastewater Fund - Cash Flow Forecast.......................................................................................9

Figure11: Billing Data...................................................................................................................................... 11

Figure 12: Rate Design Scenario 1 ................................................................................................................. 12

Figure 13: Rate Design Scenario 2................................................................................................................. 12

Figure 14: Rate Design Scenario 3................................................................................................................. 12

Figure 15: Proposed Wastewater Rates......................................................................................................... 13

Figure 16: Bill Comparison %" Residential using 6,000 gallons per month.............................................. 14

Figure 17: 2" Commercial using 30, 000 gallons per month ........................................................................ 15

Remainder ofPage Intentionally Left Blank)

CITY OF LOCKHART WATER AND WASTEWATER RATE STUDY

Page 48 of 360



Executive Summary
The City of Lockhart( City) engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) to develop water and wastewater
financial plans and develop rate structure alternatives to meet the City' s objectives. The general objective of the
financial planning process is to determine the level of rate revenue required to provide for the financial sustainability
of the utilities into the future ensure that the water and wastewater utilities are financially independent. The City has

drawn down its existing fund balance reserves over the last several years, and requires strong rate increases over the
next seven years to replenish reserves and adequately finance required capital improvements.

STUDY PROCESS

Raftelis worked closely with City staff to conduct the rate study. The study primarily focused on the development of

new rates. Rate analysis includes financial planning, cost of service analysis, and rate design. In the financial planning
process, the level of rate revenue required to provide for the financial sustainability of the utilities into the future is
determined. The cost of service determines how those costs should be recovered from different types of customers.

Rate design develops charges that recover sufficient revenue in a fair and equitable manner.

Financial Plan Findings and Recommendations

Key Finding: For this study, the financial plan was developed for a multi-year forecast period. The forecast period
uses the City' s fiscal year, which runs from October 1 to September 30. Each year shown in the forecast refers to the
year ending September 30. Separate financial plans for the water and wastewater utilities were developed to provide
each with the resources that are needed to operate self-sustainingly. Based on this analysis, current revenue levels are

insufficient to sustainably fund the ongoing provision of safe and reliable water and wastewater service.

Recommendations: We recommend rate revenue adjustments for both the water and wastewater utility over the
forecast period to fund the increase in capital and operating expenditures. Due to the growth experienced by the
City, it is recommended that staffcontinue to analyze rates every two years.

The exact impact on customer bills is contingent on implementing the rate recommendations at the end of this
report.

COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS

Key Finding: While the financial planning process determines the overall level of rate revenue necessary to sustain
each utility, the cost-of-service analysis determines how that revenue should be recovered from City customers.

Raftelis conducted a cost-of-service analysis to determine the cost to serve different types of customers depending on
how they use the water and wastewater systems. This is different than the financial plan, which evaluates revenue

sufficiency in total. The cost-of-service analysis seeks to identify the proportion of total expenditures that can be
attributed to different types of users based on the principle of cost causation. The utility systems are designed and
operated to meet the demands of City customers. This means that the cost to operate and maintain these systems is
directly attributable to these demands. That said, not all types of customers( referred to as customer classes) use the
utility systems in the same way. The principle of cost causation attributes the cost to provide utility service to the
customers that cause them to be incurred based on their demand characteristics. The results of the cost-of-service

analysis can be used as a guide to adjust rates to improve alignment between revenues, by customer class, and costs
by customer class.

1

Page 49 of 360



Recommendations: After discussions with City staff, a move towards cost-of-service is not the best option for the
City at this time. The recommendation will not affect the impact fee analysis. Raftelis recommends this be revisited
again to determine if it is feasible for the City.

RATE DESIGN

Key Finding: Once revenue requirements were identified, Raftelis developed a multi-year rate schedule designed to

recover costs more accurately from those who cause the utility to incur them. Raftelis will present three rate scenarios
for water and one rate scenario for wastewater for the City to consider. This includes an examination of the current
fixed charge and ways to make it fairer and more equitable while increasing fixed revenue for the City.

Recommendations: We recommend that the City adopt the new fixed charge rate structure that acknowledges the
readiness-to-serve component associated with larger meter sizes. After analyzing residential billing data, a change to

the tier structure is also recommended to align with users and promote conservation. When designing conservation
rates, it' s important to recognize essential and non-essential usage and how to apply the inclining block. The current
tiers utilized by the City do not clearly demonstrate this, so we propose changing the tiers to 0- 2, 000 gallons, 2, 001-
6, 000 gallons, 6, 001- 10, 000 gallons, 10, 001-20, 000 gallons and 20,001 and above for all residential users. By changing
the pricing ratios on these tiers, you can effectively promote conservation by charging a higher amount for non-

essential usage, while promoting affordability through the minimum usage, and lower price tiers that would capture
essential" indoor usage. It is also recommended that the City eliminate the inclining block structure for non-

residential users. Non-residential users typically use water more consistently than residential users, making it more
difficult to differentiate between essential and non-essential usage. As a result, it is more difficult to send clear pricing
signals to non-residential users and is a best practice to charge them a uniform rate.

Water Financial Plan
Financial Planning Methodology
This financial planning process involves three steps:

First, a revenue forecast under existing rates forms the baseline against which any revenue adjustments will be made.
Second, a forecast of operating and capital expenses establishes the costs which will need to be recovered from utility

rates. The final step involves a detailed cash flow forecast and an evaluation of rate revenue adjustments needed for
financial sustainability. The City has two key performance indicators for evaluating financial health besides revenue
sufficiency of the utilities.

Unrestricted Fund Balance as a percent of Utility Operating Expenses is a common measure of liquidity. It is a
measure of the ability of the utility to deal with unanticipated declines in revenue or emergency expenditures without

reducing service quality or dramatically increasing rates. It is determined by dividing the dollar amount of
unrestricted fund balance by projected operating expenditures. It is not uncommon for utilities to maintain balances
much higher than this minimum. Utilities with the strongest ratings from debt rating agencies ( S& P, Fitch and

Moody' s) frequently maintain balances of great than 100% of annual operating expenses. The City' s operating
reserve is the equivalent to the unrestricted fund balance.

Debt Service Coverage is a measure of a utility' s available revenues after all operating expense are paid to repay
bondholders. A typical ratio is calculated by dividing net revenues ( revenues, less operating expenses) by annual
principal and interest payments. A ratio above 1 indicates that current net revenues( operating revenues less expenses)

2

Page 50 of 360



are sufficient to meet current debt service obligations with room to spare for unforeseen emergencies. A ratio of less

than 1 would mean that the utility does not have sufficient current revenues to cover debt service payment obligations.

Debt Service Coverage targets are often defined in the City' s bond covenants.

The utility should maintain the ability to deal with unanticipated declines in revenue or emergency expenditures
without reducing service quality or dramatically increasing rates. While typical liquidity measures include operating
expenses only, we recommend evaluating liquidity with debt service included as this remains an obligation of the

utility, regardless of any unforeseen events.  While the number of days a utility will seek to maintain will vary by
utility, this financial plan targets 120 days. This can be used for working capital( timing differences in revenues and
expenditures), temporary revenue shortfalls, or emergency capital repairs.

When possible, rates should also be set to maintain a program of gradual, modest increases to avoid large increases

to deal with future expenses. A longer series of more modest rate increases is more equitable for customers than

postponing adjustments and requiring painfully large rate increases in the future.

Forecast of Revenue at Existing Rates
Figure 1: Water Revenue at Existing Rates provides the forecast of water revenue at existing rates. Determining
revenue under the City' s existing rate levels is the first step in developing the financial plan. These revenues form the
baseline( i.e. in the absence of any action to adjust rates) against which projected expenditures are compared. This
step asks the question: " what would our revenues be, if we did not take any action to adjust rates?"

To determine revenue under existing rates Raftelis projected account growth and usage per account, which results in
an overall usage forecast. To establish a baseline of demand, Raftelis reviewed account and water usage data from

the previous three years. The study uses 3. 0% growth for Residential, 1. 5% growth for Commercial, 1. 0% growth for

Industrial. These growth rates through the forecast period are based on historical data and discussions with City staff.
The forecasted accounts were then multiplied by the historical usage per account to determine a forecast of demand
for each class. Using these projections, a forecast of revenue under existing rates was calculated to determine the
need for future rate adjustments.

Figure 1: Water Revenue at Existina Rates

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Residential 2, 435, 730  $    2, 508,802  $    2, 584,066   $    2, 661, 588   $    2, 741,436

Commercial 1, 005, 878 1, 031, 025 1, 056, 801 1, 083, 221 1, 110,301

City 66, 291 66, 291 66, 291 66, 291 66, 291

Industrial 368,299 368,338 368,376 368,415 368,454

Total 3, 876, 199  $    3, 974,456  $    4,075,535   $    4, 179, 516  $    4, 286,483

Forecast of Expenses

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses are those which the utility incurs on a consistent day to day basis, and which generally do not
involve the construction of a capital asset. Raftelis reviewed the FY 2022 budget and compared it to historical actual

spending and found it to be a reasonable basis for the O& M forecast. A significant portion of operating expenses is

the purchase of treated water from Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority( GBRA), the City' s wholesale water service
provider. The City is also pays for operations of two water treatment plants. These treatment plant expenses are

3

Page 51 of 360



included in the GBRA related expenses shown below. In FY 2021, it is projected that expenses related to GBRA will

account for 77% of the City' s operating expenditures. Figure 2 shows the forecast of operating expenses and what

percent of operating expenditures can be attributed to GBRA.

Figure 2: Forecast of Water OU"

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Salaries and Wages 264,903  $      271,526  $      278,314  $      285,272   $      292,403

Benefits 129, 483 121, 805 124,851 127, 972 131, 172

Materials & Supplies 64,898 66,520 68,183 69, 888 71, 635

Professional Services 7, 900 8,098 8,300 8,507 8,720

Property Services 700 718 735 754 773

Capital Expenses 1, 752,000 157, 850 161, 796 165, 841 169, 987

GBRA Expenses 2, 565,310 2, 625,710 3, 012,775 3, 423,506 3, 560,836

Other 327,480 251,317 257,600 264,040 270,640

Total 5, 112, 674  $    3, 503,542  $    3, 912,554  $    4, 345,779   $    4, 506, 167

Percent Related to GBRA 50%       75%       77%       79%       79%

CAPITAL EXPENSES
Capital expenses are incurred to make improvements to water system assets.  Figure 3 indicates the capital

improvement program( CIP), as provided by City staff. Financing for these projects will be discussed in detail below.

The majority of these projects involve expansion projects from the Impact Analysis. City staff assigned priority level

which dictated the timing of these projects in our forecast. Some of the major projects from the impact analysis
include the 12" pipe along San Antonio St and a high service pump.

In addition to the impact analysis, this forecast built in a projection of$ 100, 000 annually for repair and replacement
R& R) projects. This amount is not for any specific project, but rather to provide the City the financial capability to

repair and replace existing assets. Lastly, two water towers, the San Jacinto Tower and the Wichita Tower, are
projected to need maintenance in the next ten years. This water tower maintenance was built into the forecast with

the costs for the two projects spread over a four-year period.

After analyzing the priority list for expansion projects and factoring in the need for an annual amount for repair and
replacement projects, a multi-year capital forecast was determined. This results in capital expenditures of around

7. 5 million over the ten-year forecast.

4

Page 52 of 360



Figure 3: Water Capital Improvement Program

2026Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 2024 2025

High Priority Expansion 1, 499, 137  $    1, 696, 103   $    

Medium Priority Expansion 231, 138

Low Priority Expansion
R& R 102, 500 105, 063 269,223 275,953 282,852

Total 102, 500  $    1, 835, 337  $    1, 965, 325   $      275,953   $      282,852

CAPITAL FINANCING

The capital financing plan includes bond proceeds, which are borrowed to finance major projects, and ongoing rate
funded capital, and revenue from impact fees. The plan in Figure 4 was developed to fully fund the CIP shown above
after adjusting projects costs for expected 2. 5% inflation. To the extent that the City has larger, one-time, capital

improvement needs in the future they could consider financing them with debt, as cash funding may require a
significant increase in rates that could then be higher than necessary to support a more normalized level of capital
expenditures.

Figure 4: Water Capital Financing Plan

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Projected Bond Issuances 913,413 1, 696, 103

Impact Fees - Cash 565, 762

PAYGO 102, 500 356, 162 269, 223 275,953 282,852

Total 102, 500  $    1, 835, 337  $    1, 965, 325   $      275,953   $      282,852

Cash Flow Forecast

The final step in the financial planning process involves compiling a cash flow forecast which identifies the revenue
adjustments necessary to ensure financial sustainability.  Expenses include operating and maintenance expenses
related to administrative overhead, operating the distribution system, purchasing water from GBRA, debt service,
and ongoing rate funded capital. The City is forecasted to draw down its existing fund balance reserves over the next

several years which is a major driver for the need of rate revenue increases. It is currently projected that the City will
begin to add to its reserves by FY 2026.

5

Page 53 of 360



Figure 5: Water Cash Flow Forecast

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 0 -     2025 2026

Revenues

Revenue Adjustment 3. 5%    6. 0%    6. 0%    6. 0%    4. 0%

Existing Rate Revenues 3, 876, 199  $    3, 974,456  $   4,075,535  $   4, 179, 516  $   4,286,483

Additional Rate Revenues 135,667 385, 920 664,011 972, 580 1, 208,830

Total Rate Revenues 4,011,866  $   4,360,376  $   4,739,545  $    5, 152,095  $    5,495,313

Non- Rate Revenues 2,081,587  $     453, 902  $     462,933  $     472,280  $     481,955

Total Revenues 6,093, 453  $   4, 814, 278  $   5, 202,478  $   5, 624, 376  $   5, 977, 268

Revenue Requirement

Operation and Maintenance( O& M)

Salaries and Wages 264,903  $      271, 526  $      278,314  $      285, 272  $      292,403

Benefits 129,483 121, 805 124,851 127,972 131, 172

Materials& Supplies 64,898 66, 520 68, 183 69, 888 71, 635

Professional Services 7, 900 8,098 8,300 8, 507 8,720

Property Services 700 718 735 754 773

Capital Expenses 1, 752,000 157, 850 161,796 165,841 169,987

GBRA Expenses 2, 565, 310 2,625,710 3, 012,775 3, 423, 506 3, 560,836

Other 327,480 251, 317 257,600 264,040 270,640

Operation and Maintenance 5, 112, 674  $   3, 503,542  $   3, 912,554  $   4, 345, 779  $   4, 506,167

Capital

Debt Service 927,083  $      966, 790  $    1, 048,117  $    1, 048,755  $    1, 083,366

PAYGO Capital 102,500 356, 162 269,223 275, 953 282,852

Total Capital 1, 029, 583  $   1, 322,952  $   1, 317, 339  $   1, 324,708  $   1, 366,218

Total Revenue Requirement 6, 142, 257  $   4, 826,494  $   5, 229,894  $   5, 670, 487  $   5, 872, 384

Financial Performance

Beginning Fund Balance 4,817, 379  $   4,768,575  $   4,756,359  $   4,728, 943  $   4,682,832

Surplus/( Deficit)      48,803) 12, 216) 27,416) 46, 111) 104,883

Ending Operating Fund Balance($)  4,768, 575  $   4, 756, 359  $   4, 728,943  $   4,682, 832  $   4, 787, 715

Target Operating Fund Balance($)( 120 Days)      $   2, 084,050  $   1, 569, 668  $   1, 717, 178  $   1, 845, 779  $   1, 996,502

Financial Plan- Key Finding and Recommendations
Key Finding- current revenue levels are insufficient to sustainably fund the ongoing provision of safe and reliable
water service.

Recommendations-

1.   Approve revenue adjustments of 3. 5% in 2022 and 6. 0% 2023

2.   Preliminary need for 6. 0% adjustments in 2024 and 2025, but dependent on growth and GBRA passthrough

costs.

Wastewater Financial Plan

Raftelis followed a similar process to develop the financial plan for the wastewater utility. Figure 6 indicates the
forecast ofwastewater revenue at existing rates.

6

Page 54 of 360



Figure 6: Wastewater Revenue at Existing Rates

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Residential 1, 471, 154  $    1, 507,933  $    1, 545,631   $    1, 584,272   $    1, 623,879

Commercial 520,988 534,013 547,363 561,047 575,074

Industrial 278,553 281,339 284,152 286,994 289,864

Total 2, 270,696  $    2, 323, 285  $    2, 377, 147   $    2, 432,313   $    2, 488,816

Forecast of Expenses

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses are those which the utility incurs on a consistent day to day basis and which generally do not
involve the construction of a capital asset. A significant portion of operating expenses is the treatment cost from
GBRA. Over the forecast period, GBRA related expenses account for over 60% of the City' s annual operating
expenditures. The GBRA related expenses are also inflated at a higher rate of 3. 5% compared to other operating

expenses that are inflated at 2. 5%. This increase is a major driver in the revenue requirement and is a cost that must

be passed on the rate payers so the City can meet critical financial metrics such as a healthy fund balance and debt
service coverage.

Figure 7: Forecast of Wastewater O& M Expenses

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Description

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Salaries and Wages 192, 479  $      197, 291  $      202,223   $      207,279   $      212,461

Benefits 96,742 99, 161 101, 640 104, 181 106,785

Materials & Supplies 81, 862 83, 909 86,006 88,156 90,360

Professional Services 14,350 14,709 15,076 15,453 15,840

Property Services 1, 000 1, 025 1, 051 1, 077 1, 104

Capital Expenses 64,100 65, 703 67, 345 69, 029 70,754

GBRA Expenses 1, 937,415 1, 817, 397 1, 881, 006 1, 946,841 2, 014,981

Other 546,909 560,582 574,596 588,961 603,685

Total 2, 934,857  $    2, 839, 775  $    2, 928,943   $    3, 020,977   $    3, 115, 970

Percent Related to GBRA 66%       64%       64%       64%       65%

CAPITAL EXPENSES

Capital expenses are incurred to make improvements to wastewater system assets. Many of the projects involve the

replacement and maintenance of the City' s collection system. Figure 8 indicates the capital improvement program
CIP), as provided by City staff. Similar to water, City staff assigned priority level which dictated the timing of these

projects in our forecast and annual amounts for repair and replacement ( R& R) were included. Financing for these
projects will be discussed in detail below. Some of the major wastewater projects include the 12" pipe from Highway

183 to FM 1322, 12" pipe from State Highway 130 and 12" pipe from Stueve West. There are other similar expansion
projects not named here that are from the impact analysis mentioned above. D

7

Page 55 of 360



Figure 8: Wastewater Capital Improvement Program

2026Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 2024 2025

High Priority Expansion 1, 040, 119  $    1, 145, 489   $    

Medium Priority Expansion 1, 090,678

Low Priority Expansion
R& R 102, 500 105, 063 107,689 110,381 113, 141

Total 102, 500  $    1, 145, 181  $    1, 253, 178  $      110,381   $    1, 203, 818

CAPITAL FINANCING

The capital financing plan includes of bond proceeds and ongoing rate funded capital. The plan in Figure 9 was
developed to fully fund the CIP shown above after adjusting project costs for expected 2. 5% inflation. Bond proceeds

are primarily used to fund expansion related projects from the Impact Analysis.

Figure 9: Wastewater Capital Financing Plan

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 024 2025 2026

Projected Bond Issuances 265,808 1, 145, 489 791,986

Impact Fees - Cash 774,311 298,692

PAYGO 102, 500 105, 063 107, 689 110,381 113, 141

Total 102, 500  $    1, 145, 181  $    1, 253, 178  $      110,381   $    1, 203,818

Cash Flow Forecast

The final step in the financial planning process involves compiling a cash flow forecast which identifies the revenue
adjustments necessary to ensure financial sustainability.  Expenses include operating and maintenance expenses
related to administrative overhead, operating the collection system, paying for sewage treatment from GBRA, debt
service, and ongoing rate funded capital. As indicated by Figure 10 10, wastewater revenues are not sufficient to
meet current expenses.  The rate revenue adjustments indicated below will ensure revenues continue to cover

expenses and reach a balance above the minimum target.

The primary drivers for the adjustments are increases to operating expenses, mainly driven by an increase in
GBRA treatment costs in FY 2022 and capital improvements.

Remainder ofPage Intentionally Left Blank)

8

Page 56 of 360



Figure 10 10: Wastewater Fund - Cash Flow Forecast

Description
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

2022 2023 0 -     2025 2026

Revenues

Revenue Adjustment 8. 0%    7. 0%    7. 0%    7. 0%    7. 0%

Existing Rate Revenues 2, 366, 909  $    2,421,820  $    2,478,061  $    2,535, 665  $    2, 594,666

Additional Rate Revenues 189,353 376, 835 586,042 819, 138 1, 078,498

Total Rate Revenues 2, 556, 262  $    2,798,656  $    3, 064,103  $    3, 354,803  $    3, 673, 164

Non- Rate Revenues 193, 850  $      163, 850  $      163,850  $      163, 850  $      163,850

Total Revenues 2, 750, 112  $   2, 962, 506  $   3, 227,953  $   3, 518, 653  $   3, 837,014

Revenue Requirement

Operation and Maintenance( O& M)

Salaries and Wages 192,479  $      197, 291  $      202,223  $      207, 279  $      212,461

Benefits 96, 742 99, 161 101,640 104,181 106,785

Materials& Supplies 81, 862 83, 909 86,006 88, 156 90, 360

Professional Services 14,350 14, 709 15,076 15, 453 15, 840

Property Services 1, 000 1, 025 1, 051 1, 077 1, 104

Capital Expenses 64,100 65, 703 67, 345 69, 029 70, 754

GBRA Expenses 1, 937,415 1, 817,397 1, 881,006 1, 946, 841 2,014,981

Other 546,909 560, 582 574,596 588, 961 603,685

Operation and Maintenance 2, 934,857  $   2, 839,775  $   2, 928,943  $   3, 020,977  $   3, 115,970

Capital

Debt Service 163, 699  $      174,802  $      240,484  $      245, 868  $      277,841

PAYGO Capital 102,500 105, 063 107,689 110,381 113, 141

Total Capital 266, 199  $     279,864  $     348, 173  $     356, 250  $     390,982

Total Revenue Requirement 3, 201, 056  $   3, 119, 639  $   3, 277, 116  $   3, 377, 227  $   3, 506,952

Financial Plan- Key Finding and Recommendations
Key Finding- current revenue levels are insufficient to sustainably fund the ongoing provision of safe and reliable
wastewater service.

Recommendations-

3.   Approve revenue adjustments of 8. 0% in 2022 and 7. 0% 2023

4.   Preliminary need for 7. 0% adjustments in 2024 and 2025, but dependent on growth and GBRA passthrough

costs.

Rates and Customer Impacts
FIXED CHARGES

When considering an appropriate fixed charge for the City, there are a few important considerations to make.

Fixed charges provide revenue stability to a City. The majority of costs are fixed, so having a healthy balance
between fixed and variable revenue is important.

Not all costs that the City incurs to provide water and wastewater service are created equal. For example, much
of the cost of providing water and wastewater service is not directly under the City' s control. These non-

9

Page 57 of 360



controllable costs place upward pressure on water and wastewater rates, even as City staff work to influence
expenses that the City can control. The cost of water purchased and the plant operations expenses for the water and

wastewater treatment from GBRA represent a large proportion of the cost of providing service. Still, the rates paid
for these services are set by the providers and must be passed on to customers.

Most of the cost of providing water and wastewater service is fixed, which means it is not dependent on how

much water a customer uses. Most of the City' s costs are incurred to make service available to customers 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year, regardless of how much water customers use on a given day. The City
cannot stop maintaining the system when water is not being used and starts again. This concept is known

as readiness to serve. When considering these factors, it shows the importance of having a steady stream of fixed
revenue. The City should adopt an industry-standard approach that recognizes and recovers the higher demand
larger meters put on the system, thus the higher fixed costs associated with serving these customers.

VOLUME CHARGES

Raftelis also recommends adopting a revised volume rate structure to address several issues. The current structure
applies an inclining block rate to all customers. A common justification for these rates is to encourage conservation,
though the current structure does not send clear pricing signals to the customer based on the billing data. Figure 11
below highlights what percentage of bills fall at different consumption levels. When designing inclining block rates,
it' s important to recognize essential and non-essential usage. The current tiers utilized by the City do not clearly

demonstrate this, so we propose changing the tiers to 0- 2, 000 gallons, 2, 001- 6, 000 gallons, 6, 001- 10, 000 gallons,
10, 001- 20, 000 gallons and 20, 001 and above for all residential users. By changing the pricing ratios on these tiers,
you can effectively promote conservation by charging a higher amount for non-essential usage, while promoting
affordability through the minimum usage, and lower price tiers that would capture " essential" indoor usage.

Remainder ofPage Intentionally Left Blank)

10

Page 58 of 360



Figure 11: Billing Data

16%

14%

12%

Ln
14%

m

0
8 WE

a
6i

45c

2`.'

0 IIIII 111.............

o rn m     " i "i rci N N om m m m ' t   Lr) U) unn  cD m w n n r, W 00 m m m rn rn

Consumption( kgal)

Proposed Water Rates

Once the overall level of revenue recovery was determined and the cost of service completed, Raftelis examined rate
structure options to recover the revenue as well as meet the objectives of the City.

Several rate scenarios were prepared for the City to consider. The first scenario does not make any changes to the
rate structure and applies an across-the-board increase to current rates. The second scenario adopts a new fixed

charge by meter size, changes the tier levels for residential customers and eliminates the tiers for non-residential
customers. The proposed rate increases for this option are then applied across-the-board. The third scenario makes

the same structural changes as the second scenario, except the entirety of the rate increase is applied to the volume
charge. This will have a larger impact on high volume users.

It is recommended that the City adopt Rate Design Scenario 2. The magnitude of the rate increases that are needed
to maintain the financial health of the utility would lead to large customer impacts if they are only applied on the

volumetric charge. These increases would disproportionately impact higher usage customers. It is recommended
that the rate increases are applied across the board after adopting the alternate rate structure as demonstrated by the
proposed scenario 2 rate projections.

Remainder ofPage Intentionally Left Blank)

11

Page 59 of 360



Figure 12: Rate Design Scenario 1

Description
1•   •       ' • 1•   •       ' • 1• I •       ' • 1•   •      ' • 1

Meter Service Charge- Residential

All Meters Mo 23. 60  $       24.43  $       25. 89  $       27.45  $       29. 09  $     30.26

Meter Service Charge- Non- Residential

All Meters Mo 34.33  $       35. 53  $       37.66  $       39. 92  $       42. 32  $     44.01

City Distribution

Residential

Tier 0( 0-2) 1, 000     $ 

Tier 1( 2- 6) 1, 000 4.80 4. 97 5. 27 5. 58 5. 92 6. 15

Tier 2( 6- 8) 1, 000 5. 05 5. 23 5. 54 5. 87 6. 23 6. 47

Tier 3( 8- 10) 1, 000 5. 30 5. 49 5. 81 6. 16 6. 53 6. 79

Tier 4( 10+) 1, 000 6. 05 6. 26 6. 64 7. 04 7. 46 7. 76

Figure 13: Rate Design Scenario 2

Description
1•  I.

Meter Service Charge- Residential& Non- Residential

5/ 8"     Mo 23. 60  $       24.43  $       25. 89  $       27. 45  $       29. 09  $     30.26

1"       Mo 23. 60 61. 07 64.73 68. 61 72. 73 75. 64

1- 1/ 2"   M o 23. 60 122. 13 129. 46 137. 23 145. 46 151. 28

2"       Mo 23. 60 195. 41 207. 13 219.56 232. 73 242. 04

3"       Mo 23. 60 366. 39 388.37 411.68 436. 38 453. 83

4"       Mo 23. 60 610. 65 647.29 686. 13 727. 29 756.39

City Distribution
Residential

Tier 0( 0-2) 1, 000     $ 

Tier 1( 2- 6) 1, 000 4. 18 4. 32 4. 58 4. 86 5. 15 5. 35

Tier 2( 6- 10) 1, 000 5. 22 5. 40 5. 73 6. 07 6. 44 6. 69

Tier 3( 10- 20)       1, 000 6. 06 6. 27 6. 64 7. 04 7. 47 7. 76

Tier 4( 20+) 1, 000 6. 68 6. 92 7. 33 7. 77 8. 24 8. 57

Non- Residential( All Usage) 1, 000     $ 4.32  $ 4.47  $ 4. 74  $ 5. 02  $ 5. 33  $       5. 54

Figure 14: Rate Design Scenario 3

Description
1•     1•     1•     1•    1•.

Meter Service Charge- Residential& Non- Residential

5/ 8"     Mo 23. 60  $       23. 60  $       23. 60  $       23. 60  $       23. 60  $     23. 60

1"       Mo 23. 60 59.00 59.00 59.00 59. 00 59.00

1- 1/ 2"   M o 23. 60 118. 00 118. 00 118.00 118. 00 118.00

2"       M o 23. 60 188. 80 188. 80 188. 80 188. 80 188. 80

3"       Mo 23. 60 354.00 354.00 354.00 354.00 354.00

4"       Mo 23. 60 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00

City Distribution

Residential

Tier 0( 0-2) 1, 000     $ 

Tier 1( 2- 6) 1, 000 4. 18 4. 68 5. 44 6. 24 7. 06 7. 69

Tier 2( 6- 10) 1, 000 5. 22 5. 85 6. 80 7. 79 8. 83 9. 61

Tier 3( 10- 20)       1, 000 6. 06 6. 79 7. 89 9. 04 10. 24 11. 14

Tier 4( 20+) 1, 000 6. 68 7. 49 8. 71 9. 98 11. 30 12. 30

Non- Residential( All Usage) 1, 000     $ 4.73  $ 4. 73  $ 5. 22  $ 5. 73  $ 6. 27  $       6. 67

12

Page 60 of 360



Wastewater Rates

Raftelis recommends across the board rate increases for all wastewater customers. After discussions with City staff,
it was determined the current rate structure is effective. Figure 15 below shows the proposed wastewater rates over

the forecast period.

Figure 15: Proposed Wastewater Rates

Meter Service Charge- Residential

5/ 8"     Mo 15. 51  $       16. 75  $       17. 92  $       19. 18  $       20. 52  $      21.96

1" Mo 15. 51 16. 75 17.92 19. 18 20. 52 21.96

1- 1/ 2"   Mo 15. 51 16. 75 17.92 19. 18 20. 52 21.96

2" Mo 15. 51 16. 75 17. 92 19. 18 20. 52 21.96

3" Mo 15. 51 16. 75 17.92 19. 18 20. 52 21.96

4" Mo 15. 51 16. 75 17.92 19. 18 20. 52 21.96

Meter Service Charge- Non- Residential

5/ 8"     Mo 19. 13  $       20. 66  $       22. 11  $       23. 65  $       25. 31  $      27.08

1" Mo 19. 13 20. 66 22. 11 23. 65 25. 31 27.08

1- 1/ 2"   Mo 19. 13 20. 66 22. 11 23. 65 25. 31 27.08

2" Mo 19. 13 20. 66 22. 11 23. 65 25. 31 27.08

3" Mo 19. 13 20. 66 22. 11 23. 65 25. 31 27.08

4" Mo 19. 13 20. 66 22. 11 23. 65 25. 31 27.08

City Distribution
Residential& Non- Residential

Tier 0( 0-2) 1, 000     $ 

Tier 1( 2-+) 1, 000 4. 67 5. 04 5. 40 5. 77 6. 18 6. 61

Combined Bill Comparisons

The following tables display a comparison of 6, 000 gallon monthly water and wastewater bills in Lockhart under
current and proposed rates to other relevant communities in the area. Additionally, a graph showing a 2"

commercial used using 30, 000 gallons per month is also shown to demonstrate the impacts to commercial
customers.

Numerous factors impact the differences in water and wastewater rates between communities. Each community is
unique, so comparisons are not apples to apples. One reason is density( the number of customers per square mile of

service area) because the cost of providing water and wastewater service decreases as more customers are served in
the same area. The source of water supply also matters. The City incurs a significant amount of costs from GBRA.
It is also important to compare bills, rather than rates. A community with a higher monthly fixed charge, for
example, might have lower usage charge with the end result being a bill that is similar between the two
communities.

Finally, it is important to recognize that lower rates are always a" point in time" comparison. This means that a

community that has lower rates now may not have lower rates in the future. Water and wastewater services are

very capital intensive. Water and wastewater pipes must be continually repaired and replaced to ensure that safe
and reliable service can continue to be provided uninterrupted. Doing so requires a significant amount of labor,

heavy machinery, steel and concrete. Deferring this repair and replacement can allow a community to have lower
rates, but this cannot go on indefinitely. Eventually these replacements will be needed and rates will need to be
increased to cover the costly repairs.

13

Page 61 of 360



While the projected rate increases will increase the bills for City customers, the rates charged to City customers are
still fairly average when comparing to similar communities.

Figure 16: Bill Comparison %" Residential using 6, 000 gallons per month

Combined Bill 6, 000 Gallons

Taylor 126.48

San Marcos 109. 49

Bastrop 102. 56

sequin 101.43

Lockhart Rate Design 1 81, 22

Lockhart Rate Design 3 79. 25

Lockhart Rate Design 2 78, 64

Lockhart( Current)  ®_ $ 76. 99

Brenham 61. 10

Luling  ® $ 46.73

Water   Wastewater

Remainder ofPage Intentionally Left Blank)

14

Page 62 of 360



Figure 17: 2" Commercial using 30, 000 gallons per month

Combined Bill 30,000 Gallons

San Marcos 853. 61

Sequin 780. 12

Brenham 688. 17

Taylor 562.79

Lockhart Rate...   492. 58

Lockhart Rate...   491.43

Lockhart Rate...-   $ 363. 94

Lockhart...    345. 62

Bastrop 349.48

Luling 219.76

Water     Wastewater

Results
The City' s current revenue levels are insufficient to fund water and wastewater service. For the City to continue to
meet key financial metrics, strong rate increases are required for both the water and wastewater utility. Rates have
been set to maintain a program ofgradual, modest increases and to avoid large, one-time increases when possible. A

longer series of more modest rate increases is an effective way to minimize customer impacts and reduce rate shock
by phasing them in and utilizing the City' s reserves. Rate structure changes are also recommended to promote
conservation and affordability for customers. Additionally, changes to the fixed charge will allow the City to collect
revenue in fairer and more equitable ways by recognizing the costs associate with larger meter sizes. By adopting the
Rate Design 2 scenario presented in this report, the City can ensure a high level of fixed revenue and minimize
impacts on low usage customers despite the projected rate increases.

15

Page 63 of 360



DRAFT

REGULAR MEETING

LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL JULY 6, 2021 6: 30 P.M.

CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3rd

FLOOR, LOCKHART, TEXAS

Council present:       Mayor Lew White

Mayor Pro- Tem Angie Gonzales- Sanchez Councilmember Derrick David Bryant

Councilmember Kara McGregor Councilmember Jeffry Michelson
Councilmember Brad Westmoreland

Council absent:

Councilmember Juan Mendoza

Staff present:

Steven Lewis, City Manager Connie Constancio, City Secretary
Monte Akers, City Attorney Victoria Maranan, Public Information Officer

Mike Kamerlander, Economic Development Dir.     Pam Larison, Finance Director

Sean Kelley, Public Works Director Dan Gibson, City Planner
Monte Akers, City Attorney (via Zoom) Shane Mondin, Building Official

CitizensNisitors Addressing the Council: Alexandra Worthington, Richard Anzaldua, Alias Armando,

Doug Alfier, Skylar Reeves, Josh Hazard, Jason Balser, Matthew Culver, Nick Hudgins, David Raschke,
Mary Raschke, Natalie Douga, Scotty Lewis, Linda Landin, and Anna Keiler.

Work Session 6: 30 p. m.
Mayor White opened the work session and advised the Council, staff and the audience that staff would

provide information and explanations about the following items. He stated that Councilmember Mendoza
will either be late or not attend due to a family emergency.

DISCUSSION ONLY

A.   DISCUSS MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF JUNE 1, 2021, JUNE 7, 2021,

JUNE 8, 2021 AND JUNE 15, 2021.

Mayor White requested corrections. There were none.

B.   DISCUSS EXTENSION OF THE PROPERTY LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR THE

PARKLET ADJACENT TO 101 E. SAN ANTONIO STREET.

Mr. Mondin stated that on March 11, 2021, a Property License Agreement was approved for 1898, LLC
dba Little Trouble to construct a parklet adjacent to 101 E. San Antonio Street.  The initial term of the

Agreement was three and one-half months, which expired June 25, 2021.   The Agreement may be
extended upon the mutual consent of the parties.  Ms. Worthington is requesting an extension of the
Agreement for three months.  Another business owner has requested information to constructing another
parklet on the same block.

There was discussion regarding the amount of time that a parklet can remain available to the public. Mr.
Lewis clarified that the City of Lockhart parklet program provides that the City Council can make the
determination about how long a parklet can remain open.

1 01` 9

Minutes- City Council—July 6, 2021

Page 64 of 360



DRAFT

Alexandra Worthington of 101 E. San Antonio Street, provided information about the parklet and provided

details about how the parklet encourages tourism and shopping in downtown Lockhart. She has had many
positive comments about the parklet, and she requested a three month extension.

There was discussion.

Mayor White read a letter of support from Alana Webre about extending the parklet permit at 101 E. San
Antonio Street.

C.   DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2021- 09 FOR AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT FOR A BIG GRANT FACADE IMPROVEMENT WITH

SOUNDWAVES ART FOUNDATION LOCATED AT 115 N. MAIN STREET.

Mr.  Kamerlander stated that the Resolution and Performance Agreement offering a BIG Grant to
Soundwaves Art Foundation.   Soundwaves is relocating its headquarters from Austin to Lockhart.
Soundwaves is an art studio that partners with musicians to create and auction art for the musician' s choice

of charity.  They have partnered with some of the biggest names in the music industry to great success.
Soundwaves has purchased the building at 115 N. Main Street and have begun renovation of the inside
and expect to do extensive work on the facade. The owner has met with Lockhart Economic Development

Corporation( LEDC) and submitted their BIG grant application which provides a 50 percent rebate for the

facade improvements up to $ 20, 000.  The project requires approval by the Historical Commission and
must be permitted by the City. The BIG grant program rebates 50 percent of actual expenditures that have
proof of payment once the project is done and cannot go beyond $20, 000 per project. The improvements

are currently going through the permitting process and will begin once permitted.   The Economic

Development Performance Agreement outlines the work to be done on the building and the rebate the
owners would be entitled to should the work be completed as stated and paid as required.  The expected

50 percent rebate is$ 12, 500 on the $25,000 worth of work on the facade. Mr. Kamerlander recommended

approval.  There was discussion.

D.   DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2021- 10 FOR AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT FOR A BIG GRANT FACADE IMPROVEMENT WITH 2120

ENTERPRISE, LLC LOCATED AT 107 E. SAN ANTONIO STREET.

Mr. Kamerlander stated that 2120 Enterprise LLC is the owner of 107 E. San Antonio Street where

Rollfast Ranchwear is located. 2120 purchased the building and have almost completed renovation of the
inside and have begun work on the facade recently.  The owner has met with LEDC and submitted their

BIG grant application which provides a 50 percent rebate for the facade improvements up to$ 20,000. The
project requires approval by the Historical Commission and must be permitted by the city. The BIG grant
program rebates 50 percent of actual expenditures that have proof of payment once the project is done and

cannot go beyond $ 20,000 per project.  The improvements are currently going through the permitting
process and will begin once permitted.  The agreement outlines the work to be done on the building and
the rebate the owners would be entitled to should the work be completed as stated and paid as required.

The expected 50 percent rebate is $ 7, 500 on the $ 15, 000 worth of work on the facade.  Mr. Kamerlander

recommended approval. There was discussion.

2of9

Minutes- City Council—July 6, 2021

Page 65 of 360



DRAFT

E.   DISCUSS AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

BETWEEN CALDWELL COUNTY AND THE CITY OF LOCKHART FOR PERFORMANCE

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS AND SERVICES IN REGARD TO THE LOCKHART

FARMERS MARKET TO AMEND HOURS OF OPERATION.

Mr. Lewis stated that in March 2021, Caldwell County and the City of Lockhart entered into an Interlocal
Cooperation Agreement regarding the Lockhart Farmers Market being on the square on weekends. Mayor
White indicates that he has been approached by a representative of the Farmers Market to amend the hours
to be on the square from 8: 00 a. m. until 2: 00 p.m., with a setup to begin at 7: 30 a.m. and all vendors to be
gone by 2: 30 p.m.

Mayor White stated that several vendors at the Farmers Market have approached him requesting that they
be allowed to remain on the square longer than allowed in the agreement.  After discussing the longer
hours with the Downtown Business Association, they agreed. There was discussion.

F.   DISCUSS ORDINANCE 2021- 19 ADDING A NEW ARTICLE IV,  TITLED  " USE OF

PUBLIC AREAS", TO CHAPTER 18, " ENVIRONMENT" OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART

CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROHIBIT CAMPING, BATHING, AND URINATING AND

DEFECATING IN PUBLIC AREAS, AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED

500.00 FOR EACH OFFENSE.

Mr. Lewis stated that on June 15, 2021, the Council received a presentation by the City Attorney relative
to the City' s authority to address issues related to homelessness.  Following a discussion, the Council
directed the City Attorney to draft an ordinance which clarifies and consolidates existing regulations
which are applicable and effective in reducing or preventing the effects of homelessness. There was
discussion.

G.   DISCUSS HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX ( HOT) APPLICATION FOR HILL COUNTRY

COOK-OFF ASSOCIATION.

Ms. Larison stated that on April 20, 2021, Mayor White received a request from Richard Anzaldua for

HOT funding for the Hill Country Cook-off( HCCO) that will be held on October 15- 16, 2021 in Lockhart.
On June 10, 2021, the HOT Advisory Board held a special meeting to review the application for funding
by the Hill Country Cook-off Association.   The request was for $4,000 to be used for advertising,
solicitations, promotional programs to attract tourists and convention delegates or registrants to the

municipality of its vicinity.  The Board voted 4- 1 to recommend approval of funding with the conditions
of one- half funding prior to the event and one-half funding after the receipt of the post event form and
with adequate receipts.   The HOT Advisory Board recommended approval of $4,000, one- half upon
approval of Council prior to event and one-half after the receipt of the post event form and adequate

receipts.  There was discussion.

Mayor White requested Richard Anzaldua to address the Council.

Richard Anzaldua and Alias Armando, San Marcos, Texas, of HCCO provided information about HCCO

in that they host events throughout the year to raise funds to donate to facilities that care for children with
cancer, such as Make a Wish Foundation or the Ronald McDonald House.  HCCO has hosted a barbecue

cook-off for 16 years in Lockhart, except in 2019 and 2020 due to the pandemic. He stated that when the

HCCO cook-off is hosted in Lockhart,  all hotels are booked and participants range from Texas,

surrounding states and, also throughout the world, such as Japan and Australia. He requested approval of
HOT funding and requested that the City of Lockhart co- sponsor the event. There was discussion.

3 of 9

Minutes- City Council—July 6, 2021

Page 66 of 360



DRAFT

H.   DISCUSS FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO COURTHOUSE NIGHTS MUSIC EVENTS.

Mayor White stated that the music events are scheduled up until October 2021. He requested the Council' s
input about possibly providing financial assistance.  Funds can be used from the special revenue account
such as Sip-n- Stroll.  There was discussion.

L DISCUSSION TO ADDRESS MATTERS RELATED TO COVID-19, IF NECESSARY.

Mayor White announced that vaccinations are no longer offered at the Adams Gym.

RECESS:  Mayor White announced that the Council would recess for a break at 7: 30 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.

Mayor Lew White called the meeting to order at 7: 45 p.m.

ITEM 2. INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

Councilmember McGregor gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and

Texas flags.

ITEM 3. PUBLIC COMMENT.

Doug Alfier, Lockhart, stated that the Lockhart Police Department indicates that his property does not
qualify for a wrecker storage facility because the property is outside the city limits.   He requested

assistance with being considered as a vehicle storage facility for the Lockhart Police Department since the
property is inside the Lockhart extraterritorial jurisdiction.  Mayor White requested Mr. Alfier to consult

with city staff about the situation.

Mayor White requested additional citizens to address the Council. There were none.

ITEM 4-A. HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON APPLICATION ZC-21- 09 BY SKYLAR REEVES

ON BEHALF OF EDWARD P. AND ALMA GONZALEZ PEREZ FOR A ZONING CHANGE

FROM CLB COMMERCIAL LIGHT BUSINESS DISTRICT AND CMB COMMERCIAL

MEDIUM BUSINESS DISTRICT TO CHB COMMERCIAL HEAVY BUSINESS DISTRICT ON

A TOTAL OF 0. 89 ACRE IN THE BYRD LOCKHART LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 17, AND

LOCATED AT 734 AND 738 SOUTH COMMERCE STREET,  AND AT 735 SOUTH

COLORADO STREET (US 183).

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 7: 49 p.m.

Mr. Gibson stated that the applicant proposes a portable food court where food and nonalcoholic beverages

would be served from trucks or trailers, and alcoholic beverages would be served inside an adjacent

building that will also be a coffee shop. Restrooms would also be provided in one of the existing buildings.
Seating will be mostly outside, with canopies providing some shelter from sun and rain.  The applicant' s
intent is for enough food and nonalcoholic beverages to be served that it will be more than 50 percent of

the total food beverage sales of the proposed development.  However, because the alcohol sales will be

independent of the food facilities, there is some risk that the alcoholic beverage sales could exceed 50

percent of the total, in which case the land use, in its entirety, would be classified as a bar.  Bars are

allowed only in the CHB district and, in addition, require approval of a Specific Use Permit, which would
be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in a future public hearing.  The proposed CHB

zoning classification could be considered consistent with the corresponding Land Use Plan map
designation of General- Heavy Commercial.  However, because there are existing single- family homes

4of9

Minutes- City Council—July 6, 2021

Page 67 of 360



DRAFT

adjacent to the north and west, some uses allowed by the requested CHB zoning would be more
incompatible than if the property were to be zoned entirely CMB.  Because CMB is a more restrictive

classification than CHB, the City Council has the option of changing the proposed zoning from CHB to
CMB without starting the public hearing process over again.  Mr. Gibson stated that the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommend approval of CHB zoning and staff recommends approval of the CMB
zoning classification instead of CHB. There was discussion.

Mayor White requested the applicant to address the Council.

Skylar Reeves and Josh Hazard, Dale, provided details about their plans to develop a social gathering area
that would combine the properties to offer family oriented outdoor activities. They requested approval of
the zoning change. There was discussion.

Mayor White requested citizens to address the Council regarding the zoning change.  There were none.

He closed the public hearing at 8: 20 p.m.

ITEM 4- B.     DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO CONSIDER ORDINANCE 2021- 17

AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, TO

RECLASSIFY THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS A TOTAL OF 0. 89 ACRE IN THE BYRD

LOCKHART LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 17, LOCATED AT 734 AND 738 SOUTH COMMERCE

STREET, AND AT 735 SOUTH COLORADO STREET (US 183), FROM CLB COMMERCIAL

LIGHT BUSINESS DISTRICT AND CMB COMMERCIAL MEDIUM BUSINESS DISTRICT,

TO CHB COMMERCIAL HEAVY BUSINESS DISTRICT.

Councilmember Bryant made a motion to approve Ordinance 2021- 17, as presented.  Councilmember

Michelson seconded.  The motion passed by a vote of 6- 0.

ITEM 4- C. HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON APPLICATION ZC-21- 08 BY BALSER CUSTOM

HOMES ON BEHALF OF ALAN BALSER FOR A ZONING CHANGE FROM AO

AGRICULTURAL-OPEN SPACE DISTRICT AND RLD RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY

DISTRICT TO PDD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ON 18. 58 ACRES IN THE BYRD

LOCKHART LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 17, AND LOCATED AT 1107 SILENT VALLEY

ROAD ( FM 2001), INCLUDING BY REFERENCE ADOPTION OF A PDD DEVELOPMENT

PLAN FOR LOCKHART VILLAGE ADDITION PLANNED DEVELOPMENT.

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 8: 23 p.m.

Mr. Gibson stated that unlike conventional zoning classifications, which cannot have conditions attached,
the PDD classification is subject to the conditions represented by the development plan.  The zoning
change and PDD development plan must be considered concurrently since the zoning is conditional upon
the project being developed as depicted on the plan.  The owner is proposing a subdivision consisting of
60 new duplex lots plus one lot for an existing single-family dwelling, a park, and several open- space lots.
The reason for the PDD classification instead of a conventional zoning classification such as RMD is that
most of the lots do not meet the minimum lot depth and area standard of the DF- 1 or DF- 2 development

types. However, as a trade- off for the deviation in the lot size, the applicant is proposing to far exceed the
minimum standards for sidewalks and parkland ( including park improvements), and to include several

mid-block walkways.  The existing private, substandard Meadow Lake Drive will be reconstructed as a
public street, and an extension of Stueve Lane will also be constructed to provide access from Silent Valley
Road to the new internal streets of the subdivision.  The Land Use Plan map designates the location of
this development to per acre, so it' s close to being consistent with the Low Density Residential designation
of the Land Use Plan map.  In addition, the extension of Stueve Lane as a collector street is consistent

5of9

Minutes- City Council—July 6, 2021

Page 68 of 360










































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































